
 

Historic Review Board 
May 9, 2012 

Page 1 

A meeting of the Historic District Review Board was held on May 9, 2012 at 2:00 p.m. in the 
City Hall Planning Conference Room, 1911 Boundary Street. In attendance were Vice Chairman 
Bill Chambers, Board members Mike Rainey, Inez Neal, and Erica Dickerson, and Historic 
Preservation Planner Donna Alley.  
 
Chairman Joel Newman was absent.  
 
In accordance with the South Carolina Code of Laws, 1976, Section 30‐4‐80(d) as amended, all 
local media were duly notified of the time, date, place, and agenda of this meeting. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Vice Chairman Chambers called the meeting to order at 2:01 p.m. 
 
MINUTES 
Ms. Dickerson asked that the following revisions be made to the minutes of the meeting of April 
11, 2012: on page 1: “Ms. Dickerson said she objected to the aluminum material presented last 
time”; on page 4 “it needs to be stabilized and have something done with it” (strike “sold”); and 
on page 4: “Ms. Lutz said if the owner doesn’t lower the house’s price, it won’t sell.” Mr. Rainey 
suggested that voting on the minutes be tabled until the full board was present.  
 
REVIEW OF FULL BOARD PROJECTS 
1005 Craven Street – Alterations, Additions, New Construction.  Preliminary Review.  
Applicant:  John B. Crouch, III, Oceana Design, LLC for Kevin & Elizabeth Robinson (HR12‐16) 
 
Ms. Alley said the house was built in 1904 and is listed as a contributing resource. Ms. Alley 
reviewed the staff report on the property.  
 
John Crouch said he’d had a good meeting with Historic Beaufort Foundation the previous 
week and has updated his plans since. He said the house is in three parts, which he described. It 
was a two‐apartment building that is now returning to single‐family use. There’s a central 
portion that’s a single floor that was altered pre‐Milner in 1979, and a rear portion added on 
that is not historic. The Robinsons want to retain the ability to have the commercial portion on 
the bottom floor, Mr. Crouch said. They will separate it so that a business can meet the zoning 
code. They would also like to add a guest apartment (not directly physically connected to the 
house) and a two‐car garage. They may build a pool and pool house eventually, so he had 
added it into the plan. 
 
Mr. Chambers asked if the set of plans was current that was delivered to the board members in 
the mail. Mr. Crouch offered the newer set that had been updated after the Historic Beaufort 
Foundation meeting. The Historic Beaufort Foundation’s issues were more aesthetic, Mr. 
Crouch said.  
 
The aim is to make a modern single family house in the front portion, he said. The base will be 
stucco, and the windows will be smaller and raised, Mr. Crouch said. The mixed masonry 



 

Historic Review Board 
May 9, 2012 

Page 2 

foundation wall will be covered in stucco. The piers will be covered in a thicker coat of stucco. 
They will add operable louvered shutters back to the sides; the originals have mostly rotted 
away. 
 
The middle portion, Mr. Crouch said, will be raised up and a second floor created from it. The 
second floor will be kept back from the corner of the main body of the house to maintain the 
“bulk or the rhythm of the old house when you look at it from the street.” The garage and two‐
room apartment will be simple, he said.  
 
There are two pergolas projected, which Mr. Crouch indicated on the plans. The colors would 
remain the same, he said. The roof would either be grey shingle or metal, “based on the bottom 
line.” 
 
Maxine Lutz said the Historic Beaufort Foundation’s Preservation Committee didn’t address 
mass and scale but did address windows, doors, openings, and the bridge. Mr. Crouch 
reiterated that he had made changes based on the Historic Beaufort Foundation’s comments. 
He also said a portion of the low slope roof over the old kitchen will be integrated into the roof 
“to create one less plane.” 
 
Mr. Chambers asked him to discuss what trees will be removed, and Mr. Crouch said they are 
not removing any trees. He said the certified arborist will be William Waskiewicz, and he will be 
responsible for the long‐term care of the plants.  
 
Mr. Chambers asked if Mr. Crouch was asking for pool approval now, and Mr. Crouch said they 
could approve it if they wanted to, but it’s not going to be built at this time. In regard to fences, 
Mr. Crouch said it’s a board fence and will be at least 20% open to get air movement through it. 
Mr. Rainey confirmed that the fence will basically screen the parking lot, and Mr. Crouch said 
yes and for privacy, plus they will have a small fence to separate the property from the Rhett 
House.  
 
Mr. Chambers asked Mr. Crouch to clarify whether windows are to be repaired or replaced; if 
they’re replaced, he asked if they’ll be wooden single panes, and Mr. Crouch said yes. The lower 
windows aren’t historic, he added. 
 
Mr. Rainey said the project is ambitious and needed in the neighborhood. He said subjectively 
he doesn't like the bridge, but he sees a need for it and doesn't know a way around it. He said 
Milner doesn’t cover it. He asked if they could screen it with something fast‐growing. Mr. 
Rainey suggested a loquat and said Mr. Crouch should ask the arborist for suggestions. Mr. 
Crouch asked if the board would want them to paint the bridge Charleston green as well as 
doing the screening. Ms. Lutz said Historic Beaufort Foundation didn’t like the bridge, either, 
but couldn’t find any prohibitions against it. There was a general discussion of other plants they 
might use for screening.  
 
 



 

Historic Review Board 
May 9, 2012 

Page 3 

Mr. Chambers asked if Mr. Crouch had looked at lessening the massing with a hip roof, as a 
suggestion. Mr. Rainey said they should prevent it from looking like a caboose, and Mr. 
Chambers’ suggestion would do that. There was general discussion about the consistency of the 
casements.  
 
Ms. Lutz asked about the lattice in the foundation and whether the HDRB had any opinion 
about it. Mr. Crouch said it would be matched to what’s there, and it “would be fat and 
pressure‐treated.” He said there would be removal of vents and miscellaneous wires that have 
been added over the years.  
 
Mr. Rainey said the board should wait until Chairman Newman is present to give final approval. 
Ms. Alley asked them to give Mr. Crouch direction as to what the board would require of him to 
get to final approval.  
 
Mr. Rainey said he wonders if there’s an alternative to the three windows on the north 
elevation. Mr. Crouch said the façade would be big and blank without them, and Mr. Rainey 
agreed.  
 
Ms. Lutz reiterated that mass and scale didn’t come up at the meeting with Historic Beaufort 
Foundation.  Ms. Lutz said if there’s not a list of things for Mr. Crouch to come back with, and 
they are only waiting for Chairman Newman, they could go ahead and vote for final approval, in 
her opinion. 
 
Mr. Rainey moved for approval of the plans as submitted, with the caveats that the pool 
house and pool are not part of the project and that landscaping will be done to diminish the 
bridge as discussed in the minutes. Ms. Dickerson seconded the motion. The motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
Mr. Rainey said they should add that staff approval on roofing is acceptable if Ms. Alley will 
contact Chairman Newman before she approves it. Ms. Alley agreed. 
 
409 Harrington Street – New Construction.  Preliminary Review. 
Applicant:  Allen Patterson, Patterson Residential, for Mr. Norville (HR12‐17) 
 
Ms. Alley said this application is for an accessory structure; General Residential setbacks apply, 
and this is in a preservation district. Mr. Patterson said this is a garage addition. Ms. Alley asked 
for materials and colors to be explained better and whether it will have an impact on trees. She 
said she would need a materials list for final approval.  
 
It is a one‐car garage on the corner of Harrington and North Streets, Mr. Patterson said. The 
addition, including the porch, is 457 square feet. In regard to mass, the bulk of the garage will 
be behind the house and off of North Street; about 16’ can be seen from the street. Azaleas will 
be relocated. There’s a 6’ privacy fence that will be taken down and will be turned into a trash 
can bin. It will be located off the kitchen, he said.  



 

Historic Review Board 
May 9, 2012 

Page 4 

 
Mr. Patterson described the materials he’ll use and said on the screen porch he’ll use regular 
pressure‐treated wood, and they will match it to what exists. He said he’d get a color board to 
the board. Ms. Alley said the board wouldn’t want a metal garage door because it’s visible from 
the street.  
 
Mr. Chambers said the proposed window is all vinyl. Mr. Patterson read the details of the 
windows, which he said are the same pattern light that is on the house, six‐over‐six.  
 
Ms. Lutz asked what the siding is, and Mr. Patterson said cypress. The main house has asbestos 
shingles and “won’t be touched.” Mr. Chambers asked about the small setback for the garage. 
Mr. Patterson said they want to keep a backyard and put in a big garden. Mr. Patterson said he 
could get the colors and materials list to Ms. Alley so they can move forward. Mr. Rainey said a 
metal garage door sets a precedent, and he thinks they should stick with wood. He asked Mr. 
Patterson if he was amenable to that, and Mr. Patterson said yes.  
 
Mr. Rainey made a motion to approve the application as submitted with any follow‐on 
requirements handled at the staff level; Ms. Neal seconded the motion. The motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
DISCUSSION 
Ms. Alley announced that she is retiring at the end of June. The board offered her 
congratulations and thanks. 
 
There being no further business to come before the board, the meeting was adjourned at 3:04 
p.m. 
 
 


